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Q@ At vhat time on that day did that telephone comver-
s_ation occur? A Apout 20 minutes past 5 in the evening.
8 5:20 P.M. Just state what occurred :.%t that time when
Mr Lo'ckwood came to the telephone office? A Thy, they ask
ed me to call Bert Frankline.
MR ROGERS: This, of course, your Honor please; ve make
the general objection that it is inc ampetent, irrelevant
and immaterial and hearsay and no foundation laid. I ec-
cept ‘i"rom the ohjection my statement that they might use
the transcript of the preliminary instead of the original
document to the same effect for the same purpose if the
original document wes here. |
THE COURT: Overrulede.
MR ROGERS May I have the same objection right straight
through to this line of testimony?
THE COURT: ' Yes sir.
MR ROGERS: The same ruling and exception .
WR FORD: Just state vhat occurreds A He said to call
Bert Franklin at 4899 at Los Angeles.
Q That is, Mr Lockwood said tmt? A f‘es sir, =nd I call-
ed him, or got him =t the phone through the other oper-
ator, and they had their conversation.
Q@ Now, at the time they had the conversation, who else

was present in the office with Mr Lockwood besides your-

self? A The District Attorney.

Q J. T.Bredericks? A vYes.
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Q At that time did you mske -- did you listen to the con=-
versation that was held between A-4899 and Mr Lockwood at ‘
your office? A I was asked to. I listened to it.

Q At vhose request did you listen to it? A At the re-
quest of both Mr Lockwood and the District Attorney.

Q@ Did you make a memorandum at that time? A Yes.

Q@ As to what was said over the telephone? A Immediately
afterwards.

MR ROGERS: My objection, of course, runs to this as well
as to the othere

THE COURT: Yes sir. The same obj etion, the same ruling
and the same exceptione.

MR FORD: That memorandum, where is it now? A Vhy, in
the District Attorney's officee

Q Well, the memorandum was used Wy you at the time of
your testimony in Judge Yourg's coﬁrt and was introduced
in evidence at that time, was it not? A Yes.

é That memorandum has been mislaid, Miss Prouty, =d I
will attract yourattention to the record on page 49 of

the said preliminary examination, the exhibit teing as fol-
lows: "To Bv. Franklin, A-4899, L.A.; hello, do you know
vho this is? Well, I couldh't get in today as I‘had some
hay dowvm --" That is erroneously spelrled d-a-y, but it
was h-a-y. "I had some hay dovme Yes. Well, did you do

thet to make certain things safe? Yes. Well, come quietly
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sb as not to wake the folks up. I will te there at 8:30.
Better make it 9. All righte. Shall I bring the other |
party along? }Vhat party? The big fellow? Yes, bring him.
Signed, Ilene Prouty." Was that what youwrote down at
thst time? A Yes,
Q@ TNow, attracting yourattention to the conversation,
"Hellow" , who said that? "Hello', do you know vho thisis?"
A Mr Lockwood said that.
Q@ The next one, "Well, I couldntt get in today as I
had some hay dovmn", who said t18t? A MT Lockwood.

Q The next word, "Yes," A Mr Franklin.
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Q The next, "Well, did you do that to mzke certain things

safe?" A Lockwecod, 1 think.

Q Mr. Lockwcod said, "Well, did you do that to make certain
things safe?" "veg," A ¥, Franklin.

Q The next, "Well, come quietly so as not to wake the
folks up." 7 A Mr. Iockwood.

The next, "1 will be there at 8:30."% A lr. Franklin.
The next, "Better make it 9%"? A Lockwood.

Next, "All right"? A Tranklin.

"Shall 1 bring.the other party along?" A Franklin.
Next, "What party?" A M. Lockwood.

Next, "The Big Fellow?" A TFranklin.

The next, "Yes, bring him." A Lockwecod .

That was the substance of the conversation held on that

O H O OH O O H O

occasion? A vyes.
Q Do you remember it any more in detail now than what that

memorzndum contzins? A No.

THE COURT. Mr. Williams, did you hear the testimony of this
witness?

A JUROR. 1 did.

THE COURT. Any jurors like to have it read?  All right.

M » FORD. Cross-examine .

CROSS-EXAMINATION .

NR . ROGERS. 1 didn't get your name, What Was it, please?

A 1%t is Ilene Andrews .

What is it, please?
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Q@ Mrs. Andrews? A Yes.

Q@ Mrs. Andrews,‘did you ever see this gentleman before?
4 TXNo.

Q Did you ever hear him talk over a telephone? A ﬁo.

Q Those that you did hear talk over the telephone, so far
as you know, were Lockwood and a vcicerat 48SS A?

A ves.

Q Did you ever see Franklin? A At the trial.

Q Did you ever see him before that? A To.
Q--Preliminary Examination? A Vo.

Q Did you know his voice? A No.

Q Are you able to write shorthand? A No.

Q This'wasﬁagen in longhaﬁa? A Yes.

Q Did you tzke it as they spoke it or did you write it
directly afterwards? A Directly afterwards.

Q Now, Mr., Lockwood and the districf attorney reguested you

to listen to the conversation and make a remorandum of 1it,

ig that right? A ves.

Q And you have given us the time as 5:80 inthe afternoon?

A vyes
Q When you reachad lr, Franklinm, that is, do you reczll

whether you reached him directly or whether someonse called

him to the 'phone?
A He was called to the 'phone.

4 him after you had gotten the nunber?

Q Someone calle

A Yes.
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Q@ Was it a woman's voice or a man'’s voice that replied at
A 4899 first? A 1t was a woman's voice.
Q A woman's voice? A ves .

Q@ Who paid for the message?l Mr. Lockwood .

Q@ And who ordered the message? A Mr. Lockwood.

@ A 4892 did not call El1 Monte? A No.

Q Lockwcod called Franklin up? A Yes.

Q@ Or whoever was at A 48997 A Yes.

Q And the district attorney, as you call him, i&r. Fredericks,

stood where he also could listen to the conversation?
No . '

1 veg ybur pardon? A DNo, he did not.

Was he in the office at the time ? A Yes.

is there a booth thers? A Yes.

O O O O =

Did Mr. Lockwood go inio the booth? A Yes.

Q@ And where did the district attornéy stand when Mr., Lockwoo

Q At the-- A At the of fice window.

Q When the order wae put in by Mr. Lockwood to call up A
4859 the district attorney heard that? A Yes.

Q And the district attorney joined inthe request that you
should listen to the comersation? AA vyes.

MR. ROGERS . That is all.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION .

d

BY MR . Ford. Just a moment, Mrs. Andrews. You called up

A 48997 A Yes.
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Q And the man who answered at the other end responded to

the néme of Franklin?

MR+ ROGERS. pardon me, that is a bit leading and suggestive

and moreover, if is not the correct relation of what the
witness has said. She said when she called up A 4899 a
woman's voice responded.

MR . FORD. 1 directed her attention to the woman and then
to the man. | -

Q TFirst a woman responded, and a man responded? A Yes.
Q Did he respond fo the name of Franklin?

MR . ROGERS « Pardon me, leading and suggestive. Let her
gtate what was said.

MR..Ford; 1 was doing it to save time.

THE COURT+ 1t is leading, but harmless in this instance.
MR . ROGERS. Yes, 1 don't think it amcounts to anything, as
farms we are concerned, anyhow.

MR . FORD.. Well, then, don't object. Was the question
answered?

THE REPORTER  No.

( Question read.) A Yes.

MR . FORD. That is 2ll.
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EULA HiTCHCOCK, a witnesscalled on tehalf
of the People, being first duly sworn, testified as fol-
lows: B

DI REGT EXAMLN ATTON
MR FORD: State your name? A Fula Hitchcock.

Q Try and answer so that all the jurors can ﬁear you,
Tiss HitéPcock. Where do you reside? A 1245 Court
street.

é Los Angeles, California? A Yes, sir.

Q@ Vhat is your dbcupation?v A I zm a detective.

Q@ Connected with vhat office? A The Distfict Attorney
of L,os Angeles County.

Q And how long have youileen scting in thetcapacity with

that office? A Why , I think about four years.

Q@ Do you know one Flora -- Mrs Fdora Caplan? A Yes sir,

Q Who is she?

MR ROGERS: Pardon me; I think that is calling for a con-
clusion a2nd I object on that ground.

THE COURT: Objection sustained, | » 7

MR FGED# Did you do dﬁy work on the case of the People
of the State of‘GaiiIbrnia against Je. B. McNamara and JeJe
McNamara, William Caplan and others? A Yes sir.

Q Did you ever make any search for the wife of William
Caplan? A Yes sir. |

Q@ Who was otherwise known as Dave Capdan,wa2s he not?

A I think so.
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Q  Vhat vas her name? A TFlora Caplan, I understood.
Q Did you ever meet Flora Caplan? A Yes sif.

Q I hand you a document. which I have already shown to
counsel for the defens, which purports to be a subpoena
for Flora Caplan in the case of the Peoplev ersus J.B.
MCNamara. Did you ever see that document before? A Yes
sir.
MR ROGERS: Pardon me; I think counsel has not correctly
stated the document. WYay I see it just a moment.

THE COURT: You are entitled to see it before it is shown
the witness.

MR FORD: I did show it to him.

MR ROGERS : COunsél says that purports toke & subpoena in
the case of the %eoﬁe against Je. Be. McNamafa. As a mat-
ter of fact, it does note It purports to be a subpoena

in the case of the Peoplse of the State of California
versus M. A. Schmidt, J. B. géNamara, Je T+ McNamara,
Wiliam Caplan, John Doe, Richard Roe, John Styles and
Jane Doe, not J. B. McNamara.

MR FORD: It beging with Jd. B. McNamara and others, if
counsel prefers to have the whole of it read.

MR ROGERS: e might es well understand what it is.

MR FORD: I will have the whole of it read in evidence be-
fore long.

Q I will correct my question to include all of them,

which purports to be a subpoena in the case of the Peop
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of the State of California, versus M. A. Schmidt, J. B.
MCNamara, J. J. McNamara, Williem Caplan and others, Did
you ever see that document before? A Yes sir.
Q@ Where? A Well, I carrietji:with me from Los Angeles to
San Franciscoe.
Q@ Dig yousee the document on the date it was issued by
the District Attorney vho issued the subpoena, Mr Hill?
A  Why, I think it was the same day; I saw it previous
to the time I served ite.
Q@ Did yousee it sbout that date? A fes sir,
Q@ I attract your attention to a return meade on the back
of the document dated the 28 day of July, 1911l. Did you
make that returné A 'Yes sir‘.
Q And on vhat date did you make that return? A On
the 28th day of July, 1911.
MR ROGERS: .:J'ust a little louder, i‘f, you please, Miss Hitch-
cock. A The 28th of July, 191l. |
Q BY MR FORD: Now, vhat did you do with that document --
did you receive it before the 28th day of July, 1911?
A Yeg sir.
Q Vhat did you do with it after you received it? )
A I kept it in my possession until I found Mrs Caplan.
Q There did you find Mrs Caplan? A At La Hunda, -
Californiae.
Q VWhat county is that in? A San Mateo County.

Q Just describe the place where you found Mrs Caplan?
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A Vhy --

MR APPEL: We object to all of this as being collateral
to any issue in this case; it is incompetent, irrelevant
and immaterial. We do not think we are concerned whether
Mr Caplan was in a tomb or whether she was anywhere else;
what have we got to do with that wh ere she slept or where
she wen_t". around; vwhat has that to do with this case?

¥R FORD: I do not want to lead the witness, and I do not
want tostate wht I expect her to testify to; because I
would be accused ot tipping the witness.

MR APPEL: Youseem to admit --- weobj e’c;t to that on the
ground it is immaterial, hearsay, no foumation laid. The
court and coumel on the other side ought to have some
fourdation laid so that we cansee the trend of the testi-
mony s How is your Honor goilng to rule nn matters of

this kind unless the foumation is laid?

scanned by LALENLIBRARY |




4p

© 00 =3 & Ot = W DD =

=2 TN 2 S G U I \\ T~ S e N N e R = T 1 S~ UL R \ S A )

| 1843
MR+ FORD. 1 think it appears, she is a witness, and we
will show some acts on the part of the defendant or his
co-conspirators as affecting the witness. _
MR . APPEL. Now, there is another one of those--
MR FORD-. 1 have notivsaid what the atts were, and have
refraired from deing so.
MR . APPEL. You are accusing flies of doing something.
There are promises here, your Honor, and these promises
to the court will lead to an abundance of hearsay matter to
come before the court, assuming under your Honor's ruling
it would ®e proper to admit it, there should te some founda-
tion laid, otherwise after a while ﬁe will have a mountain
of testimony and your Honor does not know, nor do we know
where the connection is to be made so as to make it reasonab
adkissible, and 1 think they ought to show the acts of the
defendant first. |
THE COURT. Let me see that subpoena. (Same is handed to
court. )
¥R. FORD. On the point raised by counsel, if the court

please, the authorities have frequently said that seldom do

conspirators enter into any express or Written agreement

saying we will conspire together to do this or to do that,
the only proof as to the existence of a conspiracy in many

cases is Py showing acts on the part of various people.

Ly

TEE COURT. 1s this question prelirinary?

MR . FORD. 1t is a preliminary question, laying the foun
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tion .

THE COURT. That is all you need to do is to say it is bre-
liminary.

MR . FORD. Very well, then.

THE COURT. And the court must, of course, assume that
statement to be made in good faith and act on it and overrule
the objection .

MR . APPEL. Exception.

MR . FORD. Read the question.

(Question read.)

A 1In the Santa Cruz mountains, about, 1 think about 20
miles from Red Wood city.

Q@ Can you describe é little more particularly, the exact
spot where you fcund her? A Well, La Hunda is a small

camp and this place where 1 found Mrs. Caplan was near this

[

canp .
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Q@ Well, what sort of a place was she in? A It was a
smali summer -- small house.
Q Many people there? A No, there was no one except Mr
Morton, Mr Morton's wife, aznd the two Caplan children and
Mr Morton's littledaughter at this house.
MR ROGERS: In the house? A In the house, yes sirv.
MR ROGERS: I would like to have the answer read,

(Last answer read by the reporter.)
MR FORD: TwWere there any other houses near this place?
A Well, there were -- there vas one house, be perhaps
one city block away from there.
Q@ Is the place -- was the place at that time sparcely
populated or thickly populated?
MR ROGERS: I object to that as absolutely immaterial.
THE COURP:" Objection sustained.
MR FORB: Were there many other people in the vicinity?
MR ROGERS: That is objected to for the same reason and
upon the same ground.
THE COURT: Objection sustained.
MR FORD: Can youdescrive the place in more particular
terms thean you have done -- the court will pardon me;
I cen probably reech it by one kading question.
THE COURT:" I think you had better refrzin from =sking
leading questions. |
MR FORD: Was it in the .=oods?

MR ROGERS: Oupjected to as incompetent, irrelevant and
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immaterial, because anybody who lives in San Francisco
during the jionth of July --

THE COURT: Objection sustained.

MR FORD: If the court please, part of my object was to
show that this womanwas hidden away there to prevent

her fram being served with a subpoena.

MR WGERS: To prevent her from being served with a sub-
poena when there are 75,000 people out of San Francisco
in the Senta Cruz mountains.

THE COURT: You have shown where she was.

MR FORD: Well, on the 28th day -- let me have that docu~-
mente You may refresh your recollestion by this retum
and state what day you saw Mrs Caplan up there? A July
28th, 1911.

Q VWhat did you do when you saw her? A I addressed her .
as Mrs Caplan and she asked me how I found her, and I read
the subpoena to here.

MR ROGERS: I object to that as hearsay, of course, incom-
retent, and move tostrike it out as hearsay. ‘
MR FORD: Part of what transpired there,

MR ROGERS: Of course,we can alwzys be bound by vhat Mrs
Caplan said up in the Santa Cruz mountains. |

MR TORD: I don't care snything about that. Did you serve
this subpoena on her'? A Yes sir. |
Q@ This is the subpoena which you served on her at that

time? A Yes sir.
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MR FORD: I offer it ineridence as }-Deople's exhibit 14,
I think it is, and I will read it in the record.
MR ROGERS We object --
MR APPEL: Object to that as incompetent, irrel erant and
immaterial and hearsay for any purpose \'Matsoevef; the con-
tents of it cannot be evidence of any facte | |
THE COURT: Objection overruled.
MR Ai’i’EL: We excepte
MR ROGERS: Just & moment before you read thate Mr Dem
called my attention to a remark that I did not notice,

and if I may be permitted, Idesire to enter an exception
to bhe remark of counsel "That Mrs Caplan vwas hidden away™.
MR FORD: I think the jury has been frequently admonished
if I didmake such remark, it was addressed to the court,
and not to regard my remarks as evidenc e‘. If I did make
such a remaerk to the court, I didn'f meke it to the jury,
and I ask your Honor to instruct the jury. A
THE COUR': Gentlemen of the jury, you are not to regard
the remarks as evidence in this case.
R APPEL: Yes.
MR FORD: (Reading:) "In the Superior Court of the
County of Los Angeles, State of California., The People

of the State of California, against M. A, Schmidt, J. B.
McNamara, ..T'. J e McNemara, William Caplan,‘ John Doe, Richard

Roe, John Stiles and Jane Doe. Subpoena. The People
of the State of California: To MTrs Flora Caplan, 1241
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Goldeﬁ Gate avenue, San Francisco, California. You are
commanded to gppear before the Superior Court of the
County of Los Angeles, state of California, at the court
room of s aid court in the court house of said Los Angeles
County, on the 1lth day of October, A.D., 1911, at 10
o'clock AXM., as witness in a criminal zction prosecuted
by the People of the State of California, sgainst M. A.
Schmidt, J. B. McHamara, J. J. McNamara, William Caplan,
John Doe, Ricpard Roe, John Stiles and Jane Doe, on the part
Bf the People. Given under my hand this 17th dayof July,
A.D., 1911, T.D.Fredericks, District Attorney of Los Ange-
les COunty, by A. J. Hill, Deputy. SState of Calffornia,
County of Los Angeles., ss. A. J. Hill, of =aid Los Angeles
County, state of California, being first duly sworn, =
says that MTs Flora Caplan resident of the city and county
of San Francisco, state of Califomia, is a necessary ad
meaterial witness for the i’eople in the zction of the i’eople

of the State of Califomia, sgainst M. A. Schmidt --
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MR+ ROGERS. 1 think the affidavit is not part of the
subpoena. -

THE COURT. Wait a moment. The affidavit is no part of the
subpoena . ‘

MR. FORD. 1f the court please, 1 have identified the entire
document .

MR . ROGERS. He has offered the subpoena.

THE COURT. 1 understand the subpoena only has besen offered;
if you desire to offer the affidavit you will have to make
the offer and let them get an exception in the record.

MR . FORD. This is a foreign subpoena, and the affidavit

is part of the foreign subpoena.

MR . APPEL. 1%t is not. 1t is an affidavit--

MR. FORD. Have 1 a right to talk to the court without being
interrupted. We offer the whole document as a foreign
subpoena, and & foreign subpoena consists of the subpoena
signed by the district attorney, by the adfidavit of the
person who swears that he i3 a materizl witness or she is

a material witness, and then the order of the court serving
it and ordéring it to be served out of the county and regquir
ing the witness to appear, cer tainly that order of the

court is absolutely necessary before the witness can be
corpelled--

THE COURT. 1t may be that was yowr offer vefore but 1

didn't so understand and the record ought to be clear

on tﬁe subject.

seaaned by Ls

W o




© o0 =3 [oP BNV > W DD .=

[T R DD DO DD b
R P EBRBRREELE OO & &6 oo BE B

_ 1850
MR . APPEL. Your Honor, if 1 remember rightly, and I
haven't read the provisions of the code for about 20
years, tut 1 have done this so often--the Code provides that
a subpoena maf be issued in the usual form but that a witnes
¢utside of the county where he is required to be, need not
attend unless the order is made by the court .
THE COURT. The court agreed with your view of it, lMr. Appel.
MR . APPEL. Upon application being made under oath--
affidavit being made under oath showing thaf the testimony
of the witness is material ‘to the marty seeking the attend-
ance of thewitness. Now, that affidavit is only for the
court, Your Honor will see,to act upon c«in order to et
the court's order. The subpoena itself, you know, is the
subpoena issued under the seal of the court by the clerk.
The order of the court is attached to it because orders
of the court extend;;: beyond the jurisdiction of the county
while the subpoena of the clerk does not extend beyond the
county . 1t is only the order of the court, the court being
a court of jurisdiction all over the state, therefore, it is
the order of the court that gets the witness down, and that
affidavit is only for the court's information.
THE COURT. The court is agreeing with you about that.

Do you want an objection here?

MR . Appel. We object to the affidavit because it is hear-
say, it is incompetent, jrrelevant and imraterial, and we

ake the objection at this time, that any-¢

might as well m
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1 don't know whether it appears--this wibnesé being the

2
IE 4

S
i N

same name..as the woman there, that ghe could not be a
witness and no court had jJjurisdiction in subpoenaing her;’
MR .« FORD. ¢f the court please, the case which was on
trial at that tiﬁe was the case of the Feople versus

J. B. McNamara and Mrs. Caplan would be a competent witness
and could be compelled to testify if she were in court.

1t was necessary, in order to make the subpoena effective,
that the district attorney or one of his deputiss make
affidavit, and that the court make an order. Now, as

to the order--we only want the document containing those
acts in order to show the things that were done. The order
of the court is an order of this court, that is, of one

of. the judges of this Superior Court, and gpeaks for itself.
The court, 1 think, could take judicial knowledge of its
authenticity, but the witness she took the entire document,
including the affidavit and the order.of the court, all of
which goes to show that the witness was about to be called
as a witness, all of which goes.to show the steps taken in
order to produce herAin court . Now, we will introduce
other evidence showing that she was not introducéd in
court, and what became of her, and why, amd 1 think

that probably explains it sufficiently to the court to see

the necessity of our having the whole document in

evidence.
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The question here is, was this woman a witness, and was
she about to be called as a Witness' in court; what steps
vere taken to.secure her attendancee« One of the steps
taken to secure her attendance was the procuring of an
order from a ,jjldgé of the court in which the case was
being tried, Judge Bordwell, and the thing upon which Judge
Bondwell actedwas the subppena and the affidavit, all
parts of the same document. That is one compl ete docu-~
ment, =nd I offer the entire document for the purpose of
showing what vas dore in the way of preparing the subpoena ._
for service, and the document speaks for itself what was
don ee '

MR ROGERS: May I inquire, if your Honor please, if coun-
sel contends that the affidavit of the District Attorney

to certain effects, is proof of the fact therein stated.
MR FORD: It isn't proof of the fac;,t, and I will concedie

it is not, z2nd I dontt offer it for the purpose of proving
the fact she was a material vitness. I don't offer it

for that purpose, but I do offer it for the purpose of
showing that the District.Attorney svore that she was a
material witness and that sfeps were taken to produre her
attendance, and that the question whether or not she was a
material witness; in an event of that kind, is absolutely
immatérial. The quesftion' is different from perjury --
THE COURT: With that statement) you do not offer it for,

the purpose of showing she was a material witness, that
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draws the force out of the objection and th'e objection
will be overruled in view of that statement.

MR ROGERS: If your Honor please, if it is admitted
for a limi ted purpose, the court must instruct the jury
for the.purpose -

MR FORD: If "che.court please, we ohject to the jury being
instructed, because it is absolp.teiy immaterial whether

the witness was material or not. Section 1337 simply pro-
vides that where a person is about to be celled as a
witness, it is a crime to do certain things with that wit-h
ness. It is different from a case of perjury. In perjury
the person must not have only sworn falsely, but sworn
falsely es to a material facte. In the Bxibing of a wit-
ness to leave the state obr to leave the country or to B
swear falseiy, in the crime of bribery, it is absolutely
immaterial whether that testimony of thewif,ness ws mater-
ial or otherwise, end so there is no necessity for in-
strucbting the jury in this matter, end we would object to
it merely btecause it may give the jury an erroneous idea
that the testimony of such a witness has to be material,
end that is not the leaw.

THE COURT: Gentlemen of the jury, you have heard the ad-
mission &nd stateﬁent of the District Attorney thait the
affidavit which has been pertially read, that is about

to be presented to you in evidence is not offered for

the purpose of showing that the person subpoenaed was &

scanned by LALEWLIBRARY




© 00 ~q S Ot = W D

I I R S T I T T S T S G S Sy G Gy S G O S Y Sy vy
S T K WD R S © 00 =S Ol W N o

Lo Angeles Caunty Law Libll!l; 85,1

material vwitness, but for the purpose of showing that

due form was carried out in the issuance of the execu~
tione You will regard that statement and the court direcfs
you that the statement is a proper one to regard, that |
the showing does not constitute the mrson served as a
material witness. v

MR ROGERS: Pardon me just a moment, The affidavit speaks
of ;arx necessary d material,. Wil;l Srour Honor add the
wrd "necessafy" to your instruction.

TEE COURT :. Yés, the jury will bear in mind the instruction
and add the word "necessary".

MR FORD: It doesn't prove and is not offered for the
marpose of proving that the witness was a neessary and
material witnesg. That is the full scope of the limita-
tion necessary or material -- either necessary =d material
or necessary or materizal,

MR APPEL: Both ways.
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MR. FORD. (Reading) " State of California, County of
. v County
Los Angeles, SS. A. J. Hill, of said Los Angeles/ State,

of California, being duly sworn, says that Mrs. Flora

. Caplan, resident of the city and county of San Francisco,

State of California, is a necessary and material Witness
for the people in the action of the People of the State of
California against M. A. Schmidt, J. B. McNamara, J. J.
McNamara, William Caplan, John Ioe, Richard Roe, John
Stiles and Jane Doe, and he verily believes that the
evidence of the said Mrs. Flora Caplan is material, amd
that her attendance at the trial is necessary§ wherefore,
he prayé for an order for the attendance of said Witness.
A. J. Hill. Subseribed and sworn to before me this 18th
day of July, A.D. 1911, H. J. Lelande, Clerk, by Geo. O.
Monroe, Deputy.

State of ®alifornia, County of Los Angeles, SS.

Upon readding the foregoing affidavit, it is ordered
by the Hon. Walter Bordwell, Superior Judge of Los Angeles
County, that Mrs. Flora Caplan do attend as witness before
the Honorable, the Superior Court of said Los Angeles
County, as commanded bythe foregoing subpoena. Done at
the court house in said County of Los Angeles, this 18tk
day of July, A. D. 1911. Walter Bordwell, Judge of the

Superior Court .

MR . APPEL. We move to strike out the return, because the

return is incompetent, irrelevart and jmmaterial for any ¢
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purpose; that it doesn't appear that the subpoena in

question was served by any person authorized to serve the
subpoena . Appears to have been served by the witness

in question, she could not act as a deputy sheriff urnder

the laws as they existed, therefore, there was no proper
return of the subpoena, and no proper service of the sub-
poena s

MR . Ford. 1 will concede that the form of the return is
defective, but the witness has testified that the writing
therein is in her own handwriting, and was used by her to
refresh her memory, and the form of the return may be
defective, nevertheless, she testified she returned it .

MR, ROCERS. Then it has no business in the record; a
private individual cannot swear to the service of a subpoena
The name of the sheriff is not on there. The sheriff is
blank. | |

MR, FORD. 1 will withdraw it if there is any fight over it.
MR . APPEL® She couldn't hold office; she couldn't be the
sheriff of the county at that time. '

THE COURT. The return is withdrawn.

MR . APPEL. Your Horor can see that the serwice is absolutel

void.,
MR . FORD. The service is not absolutely void, the return

is void.
MR . APPEL. One who couldn't be 2 cheriff himself, could

not be a deputy--
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THE COURT. The return is not offered in the record.

Gentlemen of the jury it is adjourning'time.

(Jury admonished.)

(Recess until 2 o'clock P.M.)
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